
 

 

 
RIVERDALE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CIVIC CENTER - 4600 S. WEBER RIVER DR.  
TUESDAY –JANUARY 17, 2012 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Council held Tuesday, January 
17, 2012 at 6:09 PM at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive. 
 
Members Present: Bruce Burrows, Mayor  

Don Hunt, Councilor 
 Norm Searle, Councilor 
   Alan Arnold, Councilor 
   Michael Staten, Councilor 
 Braden Mitchell, Councilor  
 
Others Present: Larry Hansen, City Administrator; Steve Brooks, City Attorney; 

Randy Daily, Community Development Director; Dave Hansen, 
Police Chief; Doug Illum, Fire Chief, Ember Herrick, City 
Recorder and 10 members of the public. 

 
A.  Welcome & Roll Call  
Mayor Burrows called the meeting to order and welcomed all in attendance including all 
the Council members, he welcomed Councilor Mitchell to his first official meeting and 
said that he had been sworn in on January 12, 2012.     
 
B.  Pledge of Allegiance  
Councilor Searle led the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor Burrows read a quote about 
Francis Scott Key who wrote the Star-Spangled Banner during the war of 1812, stating 
that many popular patriotic songs have been written during difficult times of war when 
they served to inspire and rally the weary in honor of their contributions and sacrifices.   
 
C.  Moment of Silence    
Mayor Burrow’s quote was followed by a moment of silence when he asked everyone to 
remember those serving in our armed forces.  
 
D.  Open Communications   
Mayor Burrows invited any member of the public with questions or concerns to address 
the Council.  
 
Jordan Little from South Ogden distributed a written proposal to the Mayor and members 
of the City Council about designating the last day of February as Organ Donation 
Awareness Day in Riverdale.  According to Miss Little, she attends Bonneville High 
School and volunteers in a club that is working to get the word out about organ donation.  
She said that she has approached the South Ogden City Council and now Riverdale 
asking them to draft a proclamation designating February 29, 2012 as “Save a Day, Save 
a Life” in an effort to get the word out about organ donation.  According to Miss Little, 
over 500 Utahans are on the organ donation waiting list and this event will help educate 



 

 

the public about how to become donors.  She encouraged Riverdale to participate and 
thanked the Mayor and Council for their time.   
 
Riverdale Property Manager Don Adamson said he represents two dozen small 
businesses in Riverdale and opposes proposed Ordinance 790 that would allow Riverdale 
staff to temporarily suspend a businesses’ license where the health, safety or welfare of 
the community is threatened until the City Council can convene for a hearing.  He said he 
had spoken in opposition to the proposed Ordinance last September and still opposes this 
latest draft because in his opinion it puts the burden of proof on the businesses to justify 
why they should be allowed to retain their business licensees.  Mr. Adamson distributed a 
letter of opposition he said was signed by 34 area businesses owners that he told the 
Mayor and Council also opposed the proposed ordinance.  According to Mr. Adamson, 
the police and fire departments already have the ability to shut down businesses where 
the public’s health, safety or welfare is at risk and giving this same authority to the City 
Administrator is too heavy handed.  He asked the Mayor and Council to reject proposed 
Ordinance 790.   
 
There were no additional comments. 
 
E.  Presentations and Reports 
Mayor Burrows gave Councilor Mitchell a few minutes to address the public at his first 
official meeting as a member of the City Council.  Councilor Mitchell said he considers 
his election to the Council an honor and a responsibility to represent the citizens of 
Riverdale.  He thanked the staff for their efforts to bring him up to speed about how the 
city operates and he thanked the Mayor for the opportunity to serve on the Planning 
Commission and to officiate as Chairman.  Councilor Mitchell said he loves Riverdale 
City and will take the public’s vote of confidence seriously.  He said the Mitchells are 
long time residents of Riverdale and he spoke about his grandmother who recently passed 
away and was a fixture of the community for most of her life.  He said her passing and 
the outpouring of support from the community reminded him of what a close knit 
community Riverdale is and he promised to work to keep the city a great place to live as 
he strives to make a positive impact during his term of service.   
 
Mayor Burrows informed the Council that the state legislature convenes next week for 
their 2012 session and he said that he and City Administrator Larry Hansen plan to meet 
with legislative representatives weekly to lobby for Riverdale to retain its sales tax and to 
ensure that the city’s interests are protected.   
 
Mr. Hansen said in the interest of time as there are several action items on the agenda, he 
will just briefly comment on the reports included in the packet.  He recognized the city 
employees with anniversaries in the month of January and reminded the Council and 
department heads about the upcoming Strategic Planning meeting scheduled for 
Saturday, March 3, 2012 at 8:00 a.m.  According to Mr. Hansen, there is a draft agenda 
for that meeting in the packet and he asked if there are items the Mayor or Council would 
like to discuss that they let him know.  He encouraged them to review the 2010 Citizen’s 
Survey to ensure that any outstanding citizen concerns have been addressed and he said 
there will also be a discussion about any campaign feedback from citizens from the recent 
elections.   According to Mr. Hansen, the March Strategic Planning meeting helps create 



 

 

a consensus of funding priorities and department projects for the upcoming fiscal year.  
He said the city’s budget and sales tax revenue issues will also be addressed at that 
meeting.  Councilor Searle asked about the ITT Technical Institute discussion listed on 
the draft agenda and Mr. Daily said the business is looking at two locations in the city but 
he isn’t authorized to disclose those locations at this time.  Councilor Staten asked if 
more information will be provided before the Strategic Planning meeting about Citizen 
Survey concerns and Mr. Hansen encouraged all of the members of the Council to review 
the survey again prior to the meeting as it is on the city’s website.  According to Mr. 
Hansen, if everyone takes a look at the document they will be prepared to bring up 
anything that they feel still needs to be addressed.   

Chief Dave Hansen briefed the Mayor and Council on the Riverdale Police Department’s 
involvement in assisting the officers injured on January 4, 2012 in the Strike Force officer 
shooting in Ogden.  According to Chief Hansen, the Ogden Strike Force had a knock and 
announce search warrant they were attempting to carry out to investigate an illegal drug 
growing operation.  He said officers met with resistance in the form of gunfire after entering 
the home, leaving one officer dead and five others injured.  According to Chief Hansen, the 
four Riverdale police officers on duty at the time responded when the call for help came in and 
assisted in securing the area between 33rd and 34th and Jackson Avenue.  He said no Riverdale 
officers encountered any gunfire but they could hear shots going off for several minutes after 
they arrived on the scene.  According to Chief Hansen, Riverdale officers were able to assist 
with the removal of injured officers and the apprehension of the suspect.  Chief Hansen said a 
lot of heroes will be identified when the findings of the investigation into what happened that 
night are made public and he expressed pride in all the officers who were involved including 
the Riverdale officers who assisted at the scene and have donated their time in covering Ogden 
police officer’s shifts while the department was grieving.  Mayor Burrows asked Chief Hansen 
to thank his department for their contributions and he asked if the Riverdale officers involved 
are coping alright following this traumatic incident.  Chief Hansen said everyone involved had 
participated in some anxiety counseling since the incident and appeared to be doing fine.   
 
Community Development Director Randy Daily asked for any questions about the 
Community Development Projects Status Report and there were none.   
 
There were also no comments or questions on the Recorder’s Report.   
 
F. Consent Items 
Mayor Burrows asked if there were any changes to the meeting minutes and none were 
noted.    He asked for any changes or concerns with the 2012 meeting schedule and there 
were none.     
 
Mayor Burrows proposed the reappointment of City Recorder, Ember Herrick, and City 
Treasurer, Lynn Fortie through January 31, 2014.  He asked for questions or comments 
and there were none.   
 
Mayor Burrows recommended Norm Searle as Mayor Pro Tem for the term ending 
December 2012 and asked for questions or comments and none were noted.   
   



 

 

Mayor Burrows recommended the re-appointment of Planning Commissioners Brent 
Ellis and Blair Jones for four year terms ending January 31, 2016.  Councilor Arnold 
asked when their terms were due to expire before this re-appointment and Mayor 
Burrows said they officially end at the end of January.  Mayor Burrows also asked the 
City Council to ratify the Planning Commission’s appointment of Brent Ellis as 
Chairman and Blair Jones as Vice-Chairman of the Riverdale Planning Commission.   

Motion:    Councilor Hunt moved to approve the consent items.  Councilor 
Arnold seconded the motion.   

 
Mayor Burrows asked for discussion on the motion and Councilor Staten asked who the 
Mayor had selected to fill the two Planning Commission vacancies.  Mayor Burrows said 
he would like to appoint Kathy Eskelsen to finish Braden Mitchell’s term and Lori 
Fleming to complete Mike Staten’s term.   

Mayor Burrows asked if Councilors Hunt and Arnold were willing to amend their 
previous motion to approve the consent items with the addition of these two 
Planning Commission appointments and both stated that they agreed to the 
amendment.     

Call the Question:  The motion passed unanimously. 

Mayor Burrows said he had interviewed a lot of good Planning Commission candidates 
and was impressed with the willingness of so many people in Riverdale to serve.     

G. Action Items 
1. Consideration of approval of advertising for bids on: 

  a. 4400 S. 700 W. Roundabout Project  

  b. 4200 S. Parker Drive Curb and Gutter Project  

  c. 3900 S. Parker Drive Curb and Gutter Project 

  d. 2012 Class C Streets Projects   

Public Works Director Shawn Douglas said he has been working with the City Engineer 
to prepare bid proposals for four street projects scheduled to begin this spring.  He said he 
recommends they go out now while many contractors do not have a lot of work in the 
hope the bids will be lower and the bidders can lock in low project supply costs with their 
suppliers during the off season.  He asked if the Mayor or Council had any questions and 
Councilor Searle asked about bike lanes in the proposed roundabout on 700 West.  Mr. 
Douglas said the approaches have been designed to allow a biker to enter on the sidewalk 
before entering the roundabout and exit back out onto the road after the roundabout ends 
instead of competing with traffic, as recommended by the City Engineer.  Councilor 
Staten said as an Engineer he has designed roundabouts as part of his job and in his 
opinion this is a safe proposal that will accommodate cyclists on the new roundabout.  He 
asked about the addition of signage to encourage motorists to share the road or 
designating that bicycles may use the whole lane.  Mr. Douglas said signage could be 
added if the Council has consensus for the expenditure.   

Councilor Arnold asked if there is money set aside to extend the sidewalk along the 
North side of Ritter Drive to 1500 West where he lives.  Mr. Daily said when Aunt 
Nancy’s Assisted Living Facility is built they are required by a developer’s agreement 



 

 

with the city to continue the sidewalk along their property line.  According to Mr. Daily, 
the city plans to require all new developments along Ritter Drive to continue the sidewalk 
in front of their properties so that it will be done in sections as developments come in 
without additional expense to the city.  Councilor Arnold said in his opinion the sidewalk 
along the North side of Ritter Drive should be a higher priority than the roundabout at 
4400 South and 700 West.   

 Motion: Councilor Searle moved to advertise for bids on 4400 S. 
700 W. Roundabout Project, 4200 S. Parker Drive Curb 
and Gutter Project, 3900 S. Parker Drive Curb and Gutter 
Project, and 2012 Class C Streets Projects. Councilor 
Arnold seconded the motion.   

There was no discussion on the motion.   

Call the Question:  The motion passed unanimously. 

 2. a. Consideration of untabling Ordinance 790 amending RCC 3-1-12 
suspension, revocation or refusal to renew a city business license to allow 
administrative staff to suspend business licenses and require businesses to 
show cause to the City Council why the suspension should be lifted. 

  b. Consideration of Ordinance 790 amending RCC 3-1-12 
suspension, revocation or refusal to renew a city business license to allow 
administrative staff to suspend business licenses and require businesses to 
show cause to the City Council why the suspension should be lifted. 

 
 Motion: Councilor Hunt moved to untable Ordinance 790 amending 

RCC 3-1-12 suspension, revocation or refusal to renew a 
city business license to allow administrative staff to 
suspend business licenses and require businesses to show 
cause to the City Council why the suspension should be 
lifted.  Seconded by Councilor Searle.   

Mayor Burrows asked for discussion on the motion and Councilor Staten asked when 
comments would be appropriate and Mayor Burrows said once the item is un-tabled there 
will be an opportunity for open discussion on proposed Ordinance 790.   

Call the Question:  The motion passed unanimously. 

City Attorney Steve Brooks said the ordinance proposed for amendment RCC 3-1-12 
suspension, revocation or refusal to renew a city business license was poorly written back 
in 1985 creating problems for business owners by not providing an option for affected 
businesses to appeal the Council’s decision if they don’t agree with it.  He said as the 
ordinance is currently drafted, a business’ only recourse would be to file suit against the 
city in district court if they disagree with their decision to revoke their business license.  
According to Mr. Brooks, under proposed Ordinance 790 the Council still retains 
authority to revoke business licenses but business owners are put on notice by city staff 
with a 15 day time period to appeal the revocation to the City Council.  He said appeals 
consist of appearing before the City Council to present a case for why the business 
activity in question is not a threat to the health, safety or welfare of the community after 
which the Council votes on whether or not to revoke the business license.  According to 



 

 

Mr. Brooks, the due process is more thorough under this revised ordinance, giving the 
business being challenged better notice and administration the authority to suspend a 
license with appeals being heard by the City Council.  He said the administration can 
only revoke a license based on the same criteria as the Council and that he had removed 
stronger language from his first draft of the ordinance based on the Council’s comments 
back in September.  

Councilor Hunt asked for confirmation that if notice is given by Riverdale city to a 
business owner they will have 15 days to appeal the revocation of their business license.  
Mr. Brooks confirmed that will be the process under the amended ordinance with a 
representative from the business appearing before the City Council at some point within 
that 15 day period to argue why their business is not a threat to the health, safety or 
welfare of the community.  According to Mr. Brooks, the Council will ultimately decide 
by majority vote whether or not a business license should be suspended.  Councilor Hunt 
asked what will happen to the business during that 15 day interim period, specifically if 
they will be shut down.  Mr. Brooks told the Council that as soon as a business files an 
appeal with the city the administrative action is suspended and they can continue to 
operate until their hearing.   

Councilor Hunt said the letter of opposition given to the Council during open 
communications by Mr. Adamson states the burden of proof under the amended 
ordinance is on the business owner instead of the city. Mr. Brooks said the city will be 
responsible for producing evidence at that hearing to prove that the business in question 
is a threat to the health, safety or welfare of the community.  Councilor Hunt asked what 
the penalty will be if a business doesn’t appeal the revocation of their business license but 
continues to operate their business and Mr. Brooks said they could be charged with a 
Class B Misdemeanor.   

Councilor Staten said he is concerned about the broad definition of the tenth item listed 
as grounds for revoking a business’ license which reads “or any other good cause”.  Mr. 
Brooks said this is not new language that he added, but has been in the ordinance since it 
was first drafted in 1985 and he said from a legal perspective a clause like this is 
important as the city cannot foresee every potential illegal business practice that may 
arise in the future.  Mr. Brooks cited the recent cases of smoke shops selling “spice”, 
pointing out that even after state law banned the substance, business owners simply 
changed the ingredients to create the same mind altering effect.   According to Mr. 
Brooks, this is why the city’s ordinance needs a “or any other good cause” clause to 
cover all eventualities.  Mr. Hansen agreed it would be impossible to list every 
circumstance that might qualify as a legitimate threat to the health, safety or welfare of 
the community.   

Councilor Staten said that he owns a home woodworking business and asked what would 
happen if a neighbor were to make allegations that his business was creating excessive 
dust and noise.  Mr. Brooks said this hypothetical situation would not be grounds to 
revoke a business license under the amended Ordinance 790 and would instead be 
investigated by the city’s Code Enforcement Officer to see if the allegations are true and 
if practices are going on which are in violation of the city’s nuisance ordinance.   

Councilor Mitchell asked what would happen to a business that is doing something illegal 
under the current ordinance and Mr. Brooks said the city can’t take action until a City 
Council meeting is convened and the Council determines the license should be revoked at 



 

 

that hearing.  Councilor Arnold said if a business is doing something illegal or in a 
situation that presents a fire hazard they can be shut down by Riverdale’s police or fire 
department.  According to Mr. Brooks, the city’s weak business license revocation 
ordinance has caused problems for the Police, Fire and Community Development 
Departments in the past as business owners can continue to operate even if staff claims 
they present a hazard because the only body with authority to revoke their license and 
shut them down is the Council.  Mr. Brooks said the police would need to prove the 
business activity violated another city ordinance to shut it down as they don’t have 
authority under the current draft of the revocation clause of the business license 
ordinance.   

Councilor Arnold said he doesn’t support the ordinance as it is written because he 
believes it opens the city up to liability if they shut down a business and cause them to 
lose revenue.  He would like administrative staff to only have the ability to notice a 
business in violation that they have 15 days to appear before the Council who will decide 
whether or not there are legitimate grounds to revoke their business license.  Councilor 
Hunt asked if the new draft of the ordinance will mean the business must stop operating 
and lose revenue as Councilor Arnold claimed and Mr. Brooks said as soon as the 
business filed an appeal with the city they could continue to operate their business as 
usual for up to 15 days until the Council hearing and ruling on whether or not to suspend 
the license.  Councilor Arnold said he fears businesses will shut down out of fear that if 
they continue to operate they could be charged with a Class B misdemeanor.   

Councilor Staten said in the letter of opposition Mr. Adamson claims under this new 
ordinance the city could shut businesses down and that is a violation of their due process.  
Mr. Brooks stated that the due process claim is without merit as the new draft ordinance 
clearly states that written notice will be hand delivered to the business by the city clearly 
outlining they have 15 days to appeal the license revocation and providing them with the 
option to appeal to the City Council.  According to Mr. Brooks, the only two criteria for 
suspending a business license that were added by Ordinance 790 are:  

“If the licensee has refused to allow authorized representatives of the City to make an 
inspection or has interfered with such representative while in the performance of his or 
her duty in making such inspection; 

If the licensee is not complying with a requirement or condition set by the Planning 
Commission or Community Development Department, under a conditional use permit; by 
the City Council; or by agreement;” 

Mayor Burrows said the petition’s accusation that Riverdale is anti-business is simply 
wrong as the city relies on sales tax revenue from local businesses to provide the 
community with services.  He said Riverdale has many incentives and policies in place to 
attract businesses and foster business development.  According to Mayor Burrows, 
Riverdale wants legitimate businesses to flourish and to protect its citizens and part of 
that involves the responsibility to stop illegal or dangerous businesses that threaten the 
values of the community and put people at risk.  Councilor Hunt said there will never be 
a perfect ordinance but he thinks it is the Council’s duty to pass ordinances that balance 
the city’s responsibility to protect businesses and residents.   



 

 

 

Councilor Searle said he believes Ordinance 790 is an attempt to refine the existing 
business license revocation process and in researching the laws other cities have in place, 
Riverdale’s proposed revised ordinance is superior to any other that he has read.  He said 
that he hopes Mr. Adamson provided a copy of the proposed ordinance to everyone who 
signed the petition presented to the Council tonight so that they had an opportunity to 
read and understand what is being proposed.  Councilor Searle said after the review and 
comment period, he likes this latest draft of the ordinance and feels it is preferable to the 
city’s current process.   

Councilor Arnold said he thinks this proposed ordinance goes too far and he doesn’t 
agree any city department’s staff should have authority to determine what business 
activity is illegal.  He cited the example of manufacturing and selling “spice” and said the 
city should wait until the state makes those determinations and then it can follow their 
lead.   

 Motion: Councilor Arnold said he doesn’t think the ordinance 790 is 
written well and he moved to re-table the discussion. 

 The motion died for lack of a second.   
Councilor Staten said he believes some local businesses have concerns because the 
ordinance is not specific enough.  He said that he would like the removal of item ten 
which states that a business license can be revoked “for any other good cause shown.”  
Councilor Arnold said he has a problem with the phrase in the title of the ordinance that 
reads “giving authority to the administration to allow for a business license suspension” 
and he asked that it be changed.   

 
 Motion: Councilor Staten moved to re-table Ordinance 790 

amending RCC 3-1-12 suspension, revocation or refusal to 
renew a city business license to allow administrative staff 
to suspend business licenses and require businesses to show 
cause to the City Council why the suspension should be 
lifted.  Seconded by Councilor Hunt.   

There was no discussion on the motion.   

Call the Question:  The motion passed unanimously. 

Mr. Brooks asked for all members of the Council to send him their written comments 
and/or suggestions on how the ordinance should be reworded as this is his second 
revision with the suggestions from the last review and comment period incorporated in 
and they are still not comfortable with the draft.  Mayor Burrows said Friday January 27, 
2012 will be the deadline for members of the Council to submit their comments on this 
proposed ordinance to Mr. Brooks.   
 
 3. Consideration of amending Title 10 with proposed Ordinance 797 

regulating individually owned, multiple family, town homes and 
condominiums MFROZ.   



 

 

Mr. Daily said the proposed amendment to Title 10 through Ordinance 797 to regulate 
individually owned, multiple family, town homes and condominiums (MFROZ) has been 
through a public hearing and a comment and review period by the City Council, during 
which time Mr. Daily said he received no feedback or suggestions from any member of 
the Council.  He said that Ordinance 797 has the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission and he stated for the record that he thinks this is an important ordinance for 
the city to have in the city code so that Riverdale has legal grounds for requiring low 
density and a developer’s agreement with reasonable requirements for future developers 
interested in building apartments, condos or townhomes in the city.   

Mr. Daily asked for any questions or comments and Councilor Mitchell disclosed that 
both he and Councilor Staten were involved in the drafting of this Ordinance while 
serving on the Planning Commission.   

Councilor Arnold said he has a problem with the density allowing 12 units per acre 
because he fears that a home owners association could change that and allow for higher 
density at some point in the future.  He said he sees a lot of bank owned properties with a 
low resale value and asserted that there are hundreds of town homes in Weber County 
that can’t find buyers.  He said he would like to see townhomes banned in Riverdale 
because he believes that 20 years down the road these properties will become a problem.  
He said in reference to the Hayward property that Destination Homes has expressed an 
interest in turning into town homes that he would like the vacant lots to stay zoned 
commercial and he said that he will not support the city doing anything to accommodate 
a townhome development.  Councilor Arnold stated for the record that he does not like 
townhomes.   

Councilor Searle asked what the density is for the Shady Grove patio homes and Mr. 
Daily said it is an R-4 zone where 24 units per acre are allowed.  According to Mr. Daily, 
the Sherwood Park condos on 700 West allow more than 12 units per acre and under this 
proposed MFROZ ordinance the density requirements are on the low end of the range for 
multiple family housing developments.  Mr. Daily said in his professional opinion 12 
units per acre is reasonable.   

Councilor Hunt said he is concerned about any future multiple family housing units not 
being owner occupied and Mr. Daily said no municipality can mandate that a property be 
owner occupied as doing so would open the city up to lawsuits and infringe on a property 
owners’ rights.  He said the developers’ agreements and contracts language he has 
incorporated into Ordinance 797 were done in consultation with City Attorney Steve 
Brooks to help protect the city’s interests.  Mr. Daily said  there is no way to guarantee 
any home in the city will remain owner occupied as the courts will protect an individual 
property owners’ rights to do what they want with the homes they have legally 
purchased.  He pointed out there are instances such as when a couple serves an LDS 
mission when they may need to rent their homes out for a period and it would not be 
appropriate for the city to mandate that those homes remain vacant while the owner is 
away.  According to Mr. Daily, a property that is lived in is generally maintained better 
than a vacant property and it is in the property owners’ best interest to rent to individuals 
who will protect their investment to avoid the loss of property value or the expense of 
making costly repairs.   



 

 

Councilor Staten asked what the density of the town homes on Parker Drive are and Mr. 
Daily said Colonial Gardens is well over 24 units per acre.  Councilor Staten shared an 
anecdote about his brother and said there is not a lot of transitional housing in the city for 
people tired of renting but not yet ready to buy a home who would like to invest in a town 
home or condo.   He said he believes Ordinance 797 is well written and will give 
Riverdale the ability to review site plans and put developers’ agreements in place to 
protect the city’s interests when future development proposals for multiple family 
housing are made.  Councilor Mitchell said Ordinance 797 was not drafted to 
accommodate one piece of property or one development.  He said in his opinion it is a 
well-written ordinance that will be important to have on the books to protect the city from 
future development proposals with high density or developers who are opposed to 
entering into a contract or developers’ agreement with the city.  Councilor Searle said he 
too feels there is a need for Riverdale to have an ordinance regulating individually 
owned, multiple family, town homes and condominiums so that the Council will have a 
clear set of guidelines for approving or rejecting future proposals.     

 Motion: Councilor Staten moved to amend Title 10 with proposed 
Ordinance 797 regulating individually owned, multiple 
family, town homes and condominiums MFROZ.  
Seconded by Councilor Mitchell.   

There was no discussion on the motion.   

Roll Call Vote: Councilor Searle, aye; Councilor Arnold, nay; Councilor 
Mitchell, aye; and Councilor Staten, aye; Councilor Hunt, 
nay.  The motion passed with three in favor and two 
opposed.  

 4. Discussion on proposal to develop the “Hayward Business Park” property 
to a residential town home/condominium development.   

Mr. Daily said at the last Strategic Planning meeting on August 30, 2011 the Council had 
consensus to allow Destination Homes to move forward through the public process with 
their proposal to build residential town home/condominiums on the Hayward property at 
1500 west just south of the new Larry H. Miller Dealership.  According to Mr. Daily, 
based on the Council’s action, the zoning map was changed from commercial to 
transitional residential at that time as the Council had consensus that town homes would 
be a better buffer between the commercial and residential zones than other possible 
commercial uses.  Mr. Daily said recent comments and actions by the Council in 
subsequent Council meetings seem to contradict that earlier consensus so the concept 
proposal is back on the agenda for discussion tonight to clarify the Council’s desire for a 
possible future development of this property.   

Brad Wilson, a Representative with Destination Homes, said he had presented a concept 
plan for a town home development to the Planning Commission in October 2011 and was 
meeting with the Council tonight to further discuss the project and answer any questions.  
Mr. Wilson said Destination Homes is a reputable builder with 12 communities between 
Pleasant View and Daybreak in Draper and a company goal to help people build equity 
before buying a home.  He said the bank that currently owns the foreclosed property 
approached his company about buying this nearly five acre site to develop.  According to 
Mr. Wilson, the property has some challenges as it is in three pieces.  He said in his 



 

 

experience site selection and product development are keys to the success of a town home 
development so his company hired the architecture firm Urban Design Associates to 
develop a concept plan.  Mr. Wilson’s associate distributed color copies of the proposed 
development to the Mayor and Council and he pointed out the green space areas, 
children’s playground, sidewalks and traffic calming measures on the concept plan.  
Mayor Burrows asked about protection for the children from the busy street and Mr. 
Wilson said fencing or shrub barriers could be used to secure the area and are stipulations 
his company would agree to in a developer’s agreement with the city.  According to Mr. 
Wilson, the typical buyers for town homes are young couples and single professionals.  
He talked about a similar town home project currently under construction in Kaysville.   

Mayor Burrows shared an anecdote about a townhome his son lived in at Daybreak and 
he asked about the square footage of these proposed units in Riverdale.  Mr. Wilson said 
some are two stories, others three, with 1,200 to 1,900 square feet and two car garages.  
Councilor Arnold asked about snow removal and where the snow will be piled during the 
winter and Mr. Wilson said the homeowners association will be responsible for snow 
removal and it will probably be piled in the green space or landscaped areas along the 
perimeter.  Councilor Arnold expressed concern that there will not be adequate space for 
snow storage and Mr. Wilson said the alleyways in this proposed development are nearly 
double the size of those in Daybreak where he said snow removal has never been a 
problem.  According to Mr. Wilson, he is confident a solution for the snow removal can 
be devised and his company would work with the fire department to ensure everything is 
in compliance with city code.  Councilor Arnold asked about visiting parking stalls and 
where residents could have BBQ grills, and Mr. Wilson said each city has visitor parking 
requirements which would be met and he said that in other cities shared community BBQ 
grills all town home owners have access to seem to work well.   

Councilor Staten asked what the petitioner is hoping to accomplish from tonight’s 
discussion and Mr. Wilson said his company needs to let the bank know if they are 
interested in this piece of property.  According to Mr. Wilson, if there is no support from 
the Riverdale Council for a town home development they will invest in another city.  
Councilor Staten said he likes the proposal, thinks it will create a nice transitional 
housing development he feels is needed in Riverdale and will provide a good buffer 
between a commercial and residential area on a vacant, foreclosed property the bank is 
eager to sell.   

Councilor Searle said he knows Destination Homes is a quality builder but he still has 
some concerns about snow removal and creating a screen to protect existing homeowners 
to the east who are wary of a three story townhome looking down into their backyards 
and infringing on their privacy.  He said his biggest concern is whether or not the town 
homes would be owner occupied or rentals as he agrees with Councilor Arnold that the 
market seems to be flooded with town homes.  He said in the short term this looks like a 
nice project but long term he doesn’t want more rental units in Riverdale.   

Councilor Mitchell said he and his wife bought a town home several years ago in another 
city which they now rent and he said that what was once a nice development has turned 
into a place where he wouldn’t want to live and would be afraid to let his kids play 
outside.  He told Mr. Wilson he would be hesitant to support this proposal until he hears 
some public feedback in support of the project.   



 

 

Councilor Hunt said he is also concerned about what will happen to this project over time 
as the town homes age and he said that the residents that live in that area that he has 
spoken with are leery of the units becoming rentals.  He said for these reasons he would 
not support this concept proposal.   

Mr. Wilson said his company has an anti-speculation clause to prevent developers from 
buying several units and works within the limitations of the law to put restrictive 
covenants in place to encourage owner occupied housing.  He said Destination Homes 
also carefully selects a reputable property management company to oversee the long-term 
maintenance of the units and address issues like snow removal.  According to Mr. 
Wilson, he serves on the state legislature and trying to prevent property owners from 
renting the properties they legally own could create serious legal problems for Riverdale 
city.  He said that he will discuss the concerns expressed by members of the Council with 
his business partners and they will let the bank who owns the property know if they are 
still interested in buying it.   

Mr. Wilson said in light of tonight’s discussion he does not feel it is necessary to talk 
about the sewer capacity study at this time.  Mayor Burrows reminded the Council that 
the sewer capacity issue is something the city will need to deal with no matter what is 
built on this piece of property and he thanked Mr. Wilson for his proposal and 
willingness to discuss the Council’s concerns.  Councilor Hunt thanked Mr. Wilson for 
the time and expense his company has invested into this concept plan and he committed 
to show this latest proposal to homeowners in the area to get their feedback.   

 5. Consideration of action on HR Executive Session discussion involving the 
character, professional competence, or physical or mental health of an 
individual pursuant to Utah Code 52-4-205(1)(a).  

   
Mayor Burrows said in light of the earlier discussion during the City Council’s Executive 
Session, further discussion or action on the fifth action item is not necessary.   

Discretionary Items  
Mayor Burrows asked if there were any discretionary items for discussion tonight and 
Councilor Staten asked if a future agenda will address the issue brought up recently by a 
resident on a community discussion board over concern about the safety of children 
crossing Parker Drive when cars are parked on the West side of the street across from 
Riverdale Park.  Mayor Burrows confirmed that item is being tracked for the next 
Council meeting on February 7, 2012.   Councilor Staten said at the last Strategic 
Planning meeting Councilor Searle asked about how to move forward to implement a 
Complete Streets Plan in Riverdale.  Councilor Staten said he serves on a volunteer 
committee and has some information about how the city can get started, beginning with 
the passage of a Complete Streets Ordinance that stipulates that when road improvements 
are being made, cities can add bike lane striping and signs to reduce the cost.  He said 
Salt Lake City has a good ordinance on the books Riverdale could use as a model and he 
said that he would forward a copy to the group for further discussion. 
 
Councilor Searle said he agrees with Councilor Staten’s Complete Streets Ordinance 
proposal and he asked Chief Hansen if the city could look into implementing a Good 
Landlord Policy in addition to the Crime Free Multifamily Housing Ordinance in 



 

 

existence in an effort to further protect Riverdale residents.  Councilor Searle said he has 
a landlord friend that would like Riverdale to adopt a Good Landlord Policy and he said 
in prior discussions one of the city’s concerns was training costs.  Chief Hansen said 
Clearfield first implemented a crime free housing program with funding from a justice 
department grant.  He said Riverdale’s ordinance was modeled after Clearfield’s policy 
and was designed to address problems with high density housing.  He said the Good 
Landlord Policy is very similar to Riverdale’s Crime Free Multifamily Housing 
Ordinance but applies to small rental units as well.  Chief Hansen said people with a 
criminal record are not a protected class of people and can be discriminated against 
including restricting where they can live after they are released from prison.  Mayor 
Burrows asked Chief Hansen to compare the two policies and prepare to report back to 
the Council on his findings by the Strategic Planning meeting in March.   
 

H. Adjournment: 
 

With no further business to come before the Council at this time, Councilor Arnold 
moved to adjourn the meeting.  Councilor Hunt seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:38 PM.   
 
Approved: February 7, 2012     Attest:  
 
 
 
______________________                                ____________________________ 
Bruce Burrows, Mayor        Ember Herrick, City Recorder  
 


